


1. From at least in or about November 2016, up to and
including the preéent, DIYORA ASHIROVA, ELVIN BAGHIR-PUR, KIRILL
DEDUSEV, ROMAN ELIOZASHVILI, SARKHAN IMAMVERDIYEV, MIKHEIL
INADZE, AZIZA JALOLOVA, ELVIN JAVADZADE, IGOR KALINITCHEV, a/k/a
“Irvin Kalinitchev,” TENGIZ KHUKHIASHVILI, YELENA
KUDAIBERGENOVA, MISHEL LEVINSKI, STANISLAV LISITSKIY, a/k/a
“Giedrius Girnius,” ALEKSEI LIVADNYI, DURRA MEHDIYEVA, MIKHATL
MOROZOV, IELYZAVETA NAZINA, GOCHA PAPOSHVILI, MATISS PUKE,
KETEVAN SEPIASHVILI,~ ALEKSANDR STARIKOV, IGOR STASOVSKIY,
NIKOLAY TUPIKIN, KARLIS VITOLS, and MELVUT YAZICI, the
defendants, and others known and unknown, participated in a
scheme to defraud victims seeking to purchase goods on various
internet websites that advertised those goods for sale. 1In
particular, members of the conspiracy placed on internet
websites advertisements for the sale of various high-value

goods, primarily classic cars.

2. Victims who responded to the advertisements were
engaged by conspirators who negotiated sale prices for the
advertised goods and then directed wvictims to purported
transportation companies, telling the victims that those
companiesgs would receive payment and arrange for delivery of the
advertised goods. When victims contacted the transportation
companies, they were directed to send payment, typically by wire

transfer, to specified bank accounts.









and foreign commerce, writings, signs, signals, pictures, and
sounds for the purpose of executing such scheme and artifice, in
violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1343.
(Title 18, United States Code, Section 1349.)
COUNT TWO
(Conspiracy to Commit Money Laundering)

The Grand Jury further charges:

8. The allegations contained in Paragraphs 1 through 7
are repeated and realleged as if fully set forth herein.

9. From at least in or about November 2016, up to and
including the present, in the Southern District of New York and
elsewhere, DIYORA ASHIROVA, ELVIN BAGHIR-PUR, KIRILL DEDUSEV,
ROMAN ELIOZASHVILI, SARKHAN IMAMVERDIYEV, MIKHEIL INADZE, AZIZA
JALOLOVA, ELVIN JAVADZADE, IGOR KALINITCHEV, a/k/a “Irvin
Kalinitchev,” TENGIZ KHUKHIASHVILI, YELENA KUDAIBERGENOVA,

MISHEL LEVINSKI, STANISLAV LISITSKIY, a/k/a “Giedrius Girnius,”

ALEKSETI LIVADNYI, DURRA MEHDIYEVA, MIKHAIL MOROZOV, IELYZAVETA
NAZINA, GOCﬁA PAPOSHVILI, MATISS PUKE, KETEVAN SEPIASHVILI,
ALEKSANDR STARIKOV, IGOR STASOVSKIY, NIKOLAY TUPIKIN, KARLIS
VITOLS, and MELVUT YAZICI, the defendants, and others known and
unknown, willfully and knowingly did combine, conspire,
confederate, and agree together and with each other to commit
money laundering, in violation of Title 18, United States Code,

Section 1956 (a) (1) (B) (1) .




















